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SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
 
 
The following items are applicable to this modification:    
        CONTINUATION PAGE 
                                                                  
   
 
 

1. Due date for Receipt of Proposals remains the same. 
 

2. Section 00700: 
 

Add the following clause: 
 
 52.229-3 Federal, State and Local Taxes (Provided in full text) 
 

3. Technical Specifications/Drawings are amended in accordance with the attachments to      this 
amendment. Please make appropriate changes. 

 
4.   Documents/attachments provided in association with this solicitation are as follows: 

 
SPECS 
 

1. SOW Changes/RFIs (10 pages) 
 

PLANS 
 

2.  Sheet A-004 in PDF format will be displayed on the web..  
3.  Sheet A-008 in PDF format will be displayed on the web. 
4.  Sheet E-101 in PDF format will be displayed on the web. 

      5.  Zip files containing above drawings and 1 tcb file (part of downloadable package) 
 

 
  
 
 
  
         
SUMMARY OF CHANGES   
 
 
SECTION 00700 - CONTRACT CLAUSES  
 
 
 
The following have been added by full text:  
         
52.229-3     FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL TAXES (APR 2003) 
 
(a) As used in this clause-- 
 
"Contract date" means the date set for bid opening or, if this is a negotiated contract or a modification, the effective 
date of this contract or modification.  
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"All applicable Federal, State, and local taxes and duties" means all taxes and duties, in effect on the contract date, 
that the taxing authority is imposing and collecting on the transactions or property covered by this contract.  
 
"After-imposed Federal tax" means any new or increased Federal excise tax or duty, or tax that was exempted or 
excluded on the contract date but whose exemption was later revoked or reduced during the contract period, on the 
transactions or property covered by this contract that the Contractor is required to pay or bear as the result of 
legislative, judicial, or administrative action taking effect after the contract date. It does not include social security 
tax or other employment taxes.  
 
"After-relieved Federal tax" means any amount of Federal excise tax or duty, except social security or other 
employment taxes, that would otherwise have been payable on the transactions or property covered by this contract, 
but which the Contractor is not required to pay or bear, or for which the Contractor obtains a refund or drawback, as 
the result of legislative, judicial, or administrative action taking effect after the contract date.  
 
Local taxes includes taxes imposed by a possession or territory of the United States, Puerto Rico, or the Northern 
Mariana Islands, if the contract is performed wholly or partly in any of those areas. 
 
(b) The contract price includes all applicable Federal, State, and local taxes and duties.  
 
(c) The contract price shall be increased by the amount of any after-imposed Federal tax, provided the Contractor 
warrants in writing that no amount for such newly imposed Federal excise tax or duty or rate increase was included 
in the contract price, as a contingency reserve or otherwise.  
 
(d) The contract price shall be decreased by the amount of any after-relieved Federal tax.  
 
(e) The contract price shall be decreased by the amount of any Federal excise tax or duty, except social security or 
other employment taxes, that the Contractor is required to pay or bear, or does not obtain a refund of, through the 
Contractor's fault, negligence, or failure to follow instructions of the Contracting Officer.  
 
(f) No adjustment shall be made in the contract price under this clause unless the amount of the adjustment exceeds 
$250.  
 
(g) The Contractor shall promptly notify the Contracting Officer of all matters relating to any Federal excise tax or 
duty that reasonably may be expected to result in either an increase or decrease in the contract price and shall take 
appropriate action as the Contracting Officer directs.  
 
(h) The Government shall, without liability, furnish evidence appropriate to establish exemption from any Federal, 
State, or local tax when the Contractor requests such evidence and a reasonable basis exists to sustain the exemption. 
 
(End of clause) 
  
 
(End of Summary of Changes)  
 



 
AMENDMENT 6                                 October 12, 2004 
 
The RFP Documents are amended as follows: 
 
Statement of Work (SOW):    
 

1. SOW, pg. 3 , para. 1-1.6: Add the following sentence as first sentence for this 
paragraph, “Site plans shall be submitted to the Westchester County Department 
of public works for building approval per 239-F of the General Municipal Law. 
Any construction on the County Road (Walker Road) for the driveway (curb 
cut) or utility connections shall require issuance of Westchester County 
permits.” 

 
2. SOW, pg. 6 , para. 2-2.3.5, Add the following sentence, ”Exterior windows in 

rooms 129, 131, and Stair No. 1 that have access to the Administration suite 
area shall have ballistic rated windows.” 

 
3. SOW, pg. 23 , para. 4-8: Add the following sentence, “Connection to the public 

water main shall require permits from the Westchester County Department of 
Health.” 

 
4. SOW, pg. 23 , para. 4-9: Add the following sentence, “Connection to the public 

sewer main shall require permits from the Westchester County Department of 
Health.” 

 
5. SOW, pg. 30, para. 5-4.8: Delete the sentence, ”Provide soffit/ridge ventilation.” 

and Add the following sentence, “Roof system shall be an insulated roof 
system.” 

 
6. SOW, pg. 30 , para. 5-4.9: Add the following new paragraph: 

 
“5-4.9.1 Flush Metal Panel. Flush Metal Panels shall be a composite 
material such as Alucabond. Provide panels with coil coated Kynar 
based finish, smooth finish, with no exposed fasteners. Panels shall 
comply with AAMA 605.2-92, ASTM D-3363-74, ASTM D-2794-90, and 
ASTM E84-79.” 

 
7. SOW, pg. 75 , para. 10-15: Add the following sentence to the end of the 

paragraph, “Petroleum bulk storage tanks over 1,000 gal. shall require issuance 
of a Westchester County permit and requires approval of the Westchester 
County Department of  Health.” 
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Specification Sections:    
 
1.  Specifications, Section 00800, pg. 33, Para. 65(C), CONTRACTOR QUALITY 
CONTROL MANAGER, Delete paragraphs a. thru d. in their entirety, and replace with 
the following: 

 
“See Section 01451 for requirements.” 
 
 
Drawings:     
 
Sheet A-004: Delete “A-004, dated 16 August, 2004” in its entirety and Replace with 
attached sheet,” A-004, with revisions dated 10/12/2004”. 
 
Sheet A-004: Delete “A-008, dated 16 August, 2004” in its entirety and Replace with 
attached sheet,” A-008, with revisions dated 10/12/2004”. 
 
Sheet E-101: Delete “E-101, with revisions dated 9/29/2004” in its entirety and Replace 
with attached sheet,” E-101, with revisions dated 10/12/2004”. 
 
 
Request For Information (questions):    
 

1. Please describe the permitting requirements. Does this project 
have any local or state jurisdiction immunity? Are building 
permits, architectural review board, DOT curb cut, ect. 
required? For Permitting see SOW, pg. 3, para. 1-1.6 per Amendment 5 
dated Oct. 01, 2004 and this Amendment (see above). Contractor is 
required to obtain all permits per RFP requirements. The facility does 
not have local or state jurisdiction immunity. Contractor is required to 
obtain all building permits. The elevation provided as a definitive 
sample in the Guidance Drawings has been approved by the New York 
City Art Commission and shall not require additional approval provided 
that RFP requirements are met (see SOW, pg. 4, para. 1-6). The site plan 
as well as the building’s appearance as provided in the definitive 
sample has been approved by the Town of Mt. Pleasant and shall not 
require an additional architectural review board provided that RFP 
requirements are met (see SOW, pg. 4, para. 1-7). Contractor shall 
obtain a permit from Westchester County for the Walker Road curb cut. 

 
2. Is the pressure flow volume capacity of the water main known? 

This will affect the need for a pump on the fire sprinkler 
system. If not known, may we measure this at the site? 
It is not anticipated that a fire pump shall be required. 

 
3. Is an oil separator required for the garage floor drain 

discharge? Yes. All floor drains within the garage shall be routed 
through a properly sized and designed oil/water separator prior to entry 
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into the sanitary sewer system. The separator shall be an in-ground unit 
located outside the building to allow for cleaning and maintenance. 

 
4. Please provide anticipated cooling loads for the 

server/technology rooms and communications room. 
 

Preliminary equipment list and approximate loads: 
 
Communications Room:            Total   735 W (2508 BTUH)                  
 
2 Fax Machines    15 W each 
 
2 Printers     160 W each 
 
2 Large Satellite Telephones  10 W each 
 
1 Computer Workstation  130 W  
 
5 ea 19" flat panel screens  30 W each 
 
2 Base station radio   10 W each 
 
1 Television    65 W 
Conference Room/EOC:  Total   1,360 W (4,460 BTUH) 
 
2 Fax Machines    15 W each 
 
2 Printers     160 W each 
 
2 Large Satellite Telephones  10 W each 
 
3 Base Station Radios   10 W each 
 
1 UPS     160 W  
 
3 Power Supplies   15 W each 
 
1 Shredder    10 W 
 
2 Ceiling Mounted Projectors  300 W each 
 
1 Television    65 W 
 
Offeror shall verify W and BTUH ratings for anticipated equipment and 
is responsible for its own design calculations. Contractors Design shall 
include logical cooling loads for spaces and equipment to be included 
in the completed facility.  
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5. Do federal, or state/local prevailing wage rates apply? This 
will affect pricing of wage increases. Federal wage rates are 
required. 

 
6. Is it the intent to provide multiple gasoline UST’s? (As shown 

on E-101) or just one? Multiple gasoline UST’s may be provided if 
required by Offeror’s design and RFP requirements. See Sow, pg. 75, 
para. 10-15.  

 
7. Are the “Sliding hand operated crash barriers”(shown on C-102) 

the same as the VB-6 anti crash gate (Shown on C-500)? Yes. 
 

8. What is the projected date for award or notice to proceed? At  
this time, it is anticipated that the approximate award and NTP will be 
on or about January 4th, 2005. 

 
9. The drawings of the half round section at the entrance door 

indicate all brick material but the rendering indicates a 
different color material. Is this entire section to be 
concrete? Half round section indicated shall be a composite metal 
panel material such as Alucabond. See SOW, pg. 30, para. 5-4.9. 

 
10. Can the window size be modified to meet standard masonry 

dimensioning? Yes. 
 
11. Re the electrical site drawings - Has there been any input 

from Con Edison relating to underground primary, service 
transformer, service voltage, right of way or point of 
service? RFP requirements demonstrated in the electrical site 
drawings were coordinated with Con Edison.  All costs associated with 
provision of power service to project facilities including cable, 
transformers, etc, are the responsibility of the Contractor. Refer to 
SOW, pg. 25, para.  4-18. Refer to the drawings for the raceway system 
including; manholes, handholes, and duct to facilitate installation of 
power service to project facilities. 

 
12. Who builds the underground duct system, transformer pad, etc?? 

Do we have a contact at Con Ed for this job? The Contractor is 
responsible for all work. The Contractor must coordinate with Con 
Edison for provision of complete power service system to project 
facilities.  Contractor or Con Ed may perform any or all related work in 
accordance with the requirements of the RFP as agreed by both parties.  
All coordination, costs and arrangements for such work shall be the 
responsibility of the contractor. See SOW, pg. 25, para. 4-18 and 
subparagraphs. 

 
13. What is the rating of the UPS? UPS shall be sized to serve 

telecommunications, local area network, work area                                                                
computers and security system including cameras.  Assume the 
combined LAN, work area computers, telecommunications and security 
system load is 36 KW at 120/208v 3 phase. 
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14. Where is the data/comm demark, points of service for telecomm 

and network? Is this 128A “Building Server”? 
Communications Room.  See sheet E-101, note 1.   
 

15. Is lightning protection required? Lightning protection system is 
required. Refer to SOW, pg. 64, para. 9-13 per Amendment 5 dated Oct. 
01, 2004. 

 
16. We need the hydrant flow readings for the design of the fire 

sprinkler system. See answer to question No. 2 above. 
 

17. Are penthouse type air intakes (roof mounted) acceptable? If 
not, louvers will have to be added to the exterior walls. 
Roof shall be an insulated roof. Roof mounted silos or penthouse type 
air intakes are prohibited. 

 
18. Are the locker rooms required to be air-conditioned? Yes. 

 
19. ASRAE 62 requires 1.5 cfm/sf ventilation rate for garages. The 

SOW in the RFP calls for 1.0 cfm/sf. Which should we follow? 
Use 1.5 cfm/sf per ASHRAE 62. 

 
20. The SOW calls for fan-powered parallel type VAV boxes. These 

types of boxes are for use with ceiling plenum returns. The 
SOW calls for a fully ducted return. What types of VAV boxes 
are required? Fan-Powered parallel type VAV boxes shall be used with 
a fully ducted return. This is the intent of the SOW.  Contractor may use 
ductwork to connect the space return air to the recirculated air inlet of 
the VAV to comply with RFP requirements. 

 
21. The evidence room is only 140 sf. Table 10-4 (page 68) 

indicates that the room is for 8 people. Please confirm 
occupancy. The evidence room occupancy shall only be 2 people. 

 
22. Is a single boiler acceptable? Yes. 

 
23. Dual gas burners, as called for in the SOW, are custom made 

only. Is this really what you are looking for? Yes. 
 

24. The HVAC equipment Room, B21, is not large enough for the 
central air handler. The unit will be approximately 20’ long 
by 8’ wide, plus all of the additional equipment required for 
this building, boiler, expansion tank, HWH, pumps, etc. Can 
multiple air handling units be utilized? If not, an additional 
room, approximately 12’ x 20’ will be required for the 
mechanical equipment (one of the car garage spaces would be 
adequate).  Multiple air handling units are allowed and expected. The 
attic space may be used for equipment. Designs are permitted and 
encouraged to be innovative in relationship to layout, and may diverge 
from the Guidance Drawing Floor Plans provided slightly as needed to 
meet RFP requirements. However, it is expected that all applicable 
codes are also adhered to, that minimum square footages for required 
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spaces are met, and all RFP requirements are achieved in submitted 
proposals. 

 
25. Will the NYC Codes be followed for the fuel-dispensing island? 

Comply with the more stringent code of the New York State Codes, 
Local codes, and national codes per RFP requirements. 

 
26. Does the fuel dispensing island require a fire suppression 

system? A  fire suppression system is not required for the fuel 
dispensing island. 

 
27. Paragraph 12 (page 80), Energy Conservation, item 12-2: This 

paragraph does not list a closed geothermal system with ground 
loop vertical heat exchangers. Only this type of GT system 
would be feasible for the building. However, the type of HVAC 
equipment and type of AC system would be different from the 
SOW. Shall we still consider geothermal systems? If so, can we 
get the results for the test bores of the site? These results 
are required to determine the capacity of the soil and design a 
geothermal system. Do not consider a closed geothermal system with 
ground loop heat exchangers. 

 
28. Are we to assume existing sewer, water, and gas lines are 

adequately sized for our services? Offeror shall verify that the site 
meets the program requirements per the RFP for Site planning and 
Site/Utility design. See SOW, pg. 18, para. 3-1. 

 
29. Are we to assume that no traffic surveys are required? The 

town of Mt. Pleasant does not require any additional traffic surveys. 
However, the Offeror shall verify that other state and local government 
stakeholders do not require additional studies for permitting. See 
response to question No. 1 above. 

 
30. Are we to assume that the speed limit on the existing road is 

to conform to regulations? Offeror shall verify with state and local 
authorities as required for his design. 

 
31. Which Civil consultant is responsible for the site design, the 

contractor’s consultant or USACE’s consultant? The drawings 
are approved by the Town based on a specific consultant, can 
that be changed? Please clarify. The Design Build Contractor is 
responsible for the entire design including the site design. The Town of 
Mt. Pleasant site plan approval was based on the approved layout 
provided in the Guidance Drawings. See answer to question No. 1 
above. 

 
32. Once the Lp tanks are installed, is the contractor to fill the 

propane tanks or is the DEP responsible? 
Contractor shall fill Lp tanks. 

 
33. Regarding the large underground fuel tank on drawing C-102, is 

this for the fuel pump station island and who will fill it, 
the contractor or the DEP? 
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Underground fuel tanks are for fuel pump island as indicated on 
drawing C-102. Contractor shall design number of fuel tanks. Contractor 
shall fill fuel tanks. 

 
34. When we print the 11x17 civil drawings there is a double line 

passing thru the site and the building, please clarify what 
this line is. Lines are stray marks and should be disregarded.  

 
35. On drawing C-5, the Deployed Barriers and VB-6 Anti-Crash 

Gate, the Manufacturers name is written as D.A and D, please 
provide the name of manufacturer. Barrier shown is commercially 
available. Some have been tested, and test data is available from the 
manufacturers. The following are the manufacturers requested, 
however there are many other suitable manufacturers and Offerors are 
not limited to these manufacturers:  D = Delta Scientific, 24901 West 
Ave. Stanford, Valencia CA, 91355; A = ARNA Services Corp, 2724 Dorr 
Ave. Bay #4, Fairfax VA, 22031 

 
36. Is the contractor to provide telephone hand sets? No. 

 
37. In locker room B7 all four sides are covered by lockers, there 

would be no access to electrical outlets. Also, in all other 
locker rooms some of the walls are covered with lockers, 
please clarify. Provide receptacle outlets in accordance with the 
SOW paragraph 9-4.2.6. 

 
38. Has the fire department approved the site layout and the fire 

loop around the building? In some towns the fire department 
will require a water loop around the building with a fire 
hydrant at each corner. This is not an issue of the code, the 
code will not require it but the fire department may. 
Currently, on the approved site plan there is no water loop or 
fire hydrant at each corner, please confirm. The Valhalla fire 
department has approved the site layout provided as part of the Town 
of Mt. Pleasant site plan approval. 

 
39. We suggest that the security guard be eliminated from the 

contract and that the DEP use its own force to secure the 
area. This particular item is very costly to the contractor 
especially since it is not clear what the security guard is 
for. Is it to secure construction material or for other 
security issues? Non-Concur. Comply with RFP requirements for a 
security guard. 

 
40. SOW section 5-5.9.4 requires gypsum board surface finish level 

5; could that changed to level 3 or 4? Level 5 is costly. No. 
Comply with RFP requirements for gypsum board surface finish Level 5. 

 
41. Regarding SOW section 9-7 “Electronic Security System “, is 

the contractor to furnish, install, and coordinate the 
location of the empty conduit ONLY? All other work associated 
with this section is done by the DEP, for example design of 
the security system, cable, cameras, equipment, card readers, 
electronic door strike, magnetic locks, etc. Contractor shall 
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provide empty conduit and boxes to accommodate wiring and security 
equipment to be furnished and installed by NYC DEP. 

 
42. SOW section 9-5.12, who will provide this card monitoring 

system? See response to number 41 above. 
 

43. SOW section 9-5.14, what is the extended size of the pavement 
heaters? Design-Build Contractor shall size pavement heaters to 
assure pop-up bollards shall operate on the coldest winter night in Mt. 
Pleasant, New York.  

 
44. The SOW states that the As-Built drawings be signed and sealed 

by the A/E. Normally the AS-Built drawings are prepared by the 
contractors not the A/E, because the contractors are the ones 
that have to install them and know where everything is in the 
building. It is unethical to sign and seal drawing prepared by 
others, we suggest that this requirement be removed. Non-
Concur. Comply with RFP requirements for As-Built drawings. 
Compliance with the RFP requirements for this item shall require that a 
high level of coordination take place between the Designer and 
Contractor.  

 
45. Are there any exterior or interior doors “including store 

front doors and panels” other than the vision light at the 
door between room 101 and 103, that shall be ballistic rated?  
Vision Light at door between 101 and 103 
Vision Light at door between 122 and 104 
Vision Light at door between 122 and 115 
Vision Light at door between 129 and 104  
Vision Light at door between 201 and 200 
Vision Light at door between 227 and 200 

 
46. Are the bay windows over the garages, the store front glazing 

at stair No. 1, and the store front window at room 101 
ballistic rated? No. 

 
47. SOW section 2-2.3 states that the Front desk 132 and 

administration room 130 should have ballistic rated exterior 
windows. What about rooms 129 and 131 and Stair No 1? 
Exterior windows in rooms 129, 131, and Stair No. 1 with access to the 
Administration suite area shall have ballistic rated windows. 

 
48. SOW section 2-2.3.5 states “ballistic windows to all public 

areas”, please clarify this statement by providing all the 
room Numbers that require ballistic rated windows or doors. 
See replies to question 45 & 47 above. 

 
49. The SOW section 2-2.3.5.1, states that the window between room 

101 and 132 should be 3ft x 3ft, but the drawings show a much 
larger window, please clarify. Drawings indicate that three 3ft x 3ft 
windows shall be located between room 101 and 132. This is the intent 
of the SOW. One of the three windows shall be a 3ft x 3ft  pass-thru type 
per SOW section 2-2.3.5.1. This group of windows may be one large 
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window with three 3ft x 3ft segments and a pass thru as described in 
the SOW. 

 
50. SOW section 2-2.18.5 states “Provide ballistic exterior 

windows and provide STC 47 rated wall construction”. The 
Muster Room 122 has no exterior windows but has an interior 
window, should the interior window be ballistic rated? Also, 
should the doors, interior windows, and the ceiling 
construction be STC 47 rated? 
Interior window shall be ballistic rated. Exterior window in room 201 
shall be ballistic rated per 2-2.18.5. 
Only wall construction is required to be STC 47, and shall extend above 
ceiling floor to floor with the wall framing. 

 
51. Please provide information on the furniture CW2 work station 

in room 132, there is no spec. on them. Also what is the size 
of the B-2 benches? See Attachment 2, Facility Furniture 
Requirements, pg. 2-3, “Systems Furniture Workstation” for item CW2.  
B-2 benches are per Attachment 2, and shall be located in the number 
and locations indicated in the Guidance Drawing floor plans. Actual 
lengths of B-2 benches shall be part of the Offeror’s design and 
determined according to room dimensions, clearances provided, and 
layout. 

 
52. Will all contractors receive the questions and answers of the 

other contractors? Yes. 
 

53. Now that a new amendment has been issued will the period to 
ask questions be extended? No. 

 
54. Bid sheet does not have line items for the following 

conditions that may arise. Please update the bid sheet or 
advise on how to handle attaching unit pricing for: 

 
a. Rock Excavation. 
b. Unsuitable materials to be removed and disposed of offsite. 
c. Importation of new fill to jobsite if required. 
Non-Concur.  
The Offeror is responsible for reviewing provided RFP materials and 
any information gathered and generating pricing based on this 
information. The Offeror shall be expected to encounter bedrock during 
excavation of the basement and associated utility systems per the RFP. 
The selection and associated costs for materials, labor, and time, for 
the use of excavated versus imported material, shall be borne solely by 
the Offeror. Cost accordingly. 

 
55. Concrete 5-4.4. Arriscraft Olive is a 12” x 24” x 4” Calcium 

silicate block. Are you requesting an add mixture that gets 
added to the cement to produce the color of the Arriscraft 
Olive? If so please supply contract information for 
manufacturer of mixture. If not, is the Arriscraft Olive block 
to be used as a veneer over the concrete powder in place or 
precast panels? Concrete may be Poured-in-place or Precast panels 
per SOW, pg. 29, para. 5-4.4. Color shall match Arriscraft Olive per 
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Attachment to the Statement of Work No. 1, pg. 1-2, Exterior Color 
Schedule. Equal materials matching the color and texture may be 
acceptable. It is the responsibility of the Offeror/designer to determine 
how (means and methods) colors are matched. 
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